
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, May 02, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Ulysses Brewer 

Pledge of Allegiance given by  Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Proclamation declaring the week of May 9 through May 13, 2022, as Economic Development 

Week. (ADMIN) 

2. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN) City 

Manager E. Jay Ellington  

CONSENT 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 18, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $37,900 to the Texarkana Regional 

Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

5. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Solid Waste 

Specialists, LLC, to prepare and procure documents required to solicit proposals for 

commercial and residential waste collection. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

6. Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to purchase Comfort Isle Skid Restrooms 

from AMS Global, for the Festival Plaza Park area. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 



 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

7. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located in the 6000-6100 block of East Broad 

Street from R-1 Rural residential to C-3 Open-display commercial. (Ward 6) (PWD) City 

Planner Mary Beck 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, May 16, 2022 

ADJOURN 

 

2022 City Calendar 
 

Gateway Farmers Market – Opening Saturday, May 7th - 7AM-noon 

Four States Auto Museum Annual Spring Car Show - Saturday, May 7th - 8AM-3:30PM 

2022 Job Fair - Texarkana Rec Center - Tuesday, May 17th - 3-7PM 

Gateway Farmers Market - First Responder Appreciation Day - Saturday, May 21st - 

7AM-noon 

The Greater Texarkana Autism Awareness Fundraiser - Saturday, May 21st - 7AM-5PM 

45th Anniversary of Smokey and the Bandit Run - Sunday, May 22nd - 10AM-4PM 

4-H County O-Rama - Texarkana Rec Center - Tuesday, May 24th - 2-8PM 

Texarkana Down Syndrome Society Awareness Walk & Fun Day - Saturday, October 8th - 

Front Street - 8AM - 4PM 

Universal Vibes - Crossties & Front Street - Saturday, October 22nd - 10AM - 11PM 

 

Texarkana Rec Center May Calendar 

Gym Open Daily - 8AM-7PM 

Ageless Grace - Mondays - 10AM-11AM 

Life Skills/Risk Avoidance - Mondays - Girls 5-6PM - Boys 6-7PM 



 

Texarkana Stompers Drumline - Tuesdays & Thursdays - 5-6PM 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6-8PM 

Drums Alive - Wednesdays - 9-10AM 

Diabetes Empowerment Education Program - Fridays - 1-3PM 

Texarkana League of Champions - Saturdays 9AM-5PM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington  

AGENDA DATE: May 2, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Service Awards: 

 

William Greer PWD 15 Years 

Allen Johnson TAPD 10 Years 

Zachary White TAPD 15 Years 

Christopher McKinney TWU 10 Years 

David Gauldin TWU 25 Years 
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 18, 2022.  (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: May 2, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, April 18, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, Ward 

3 Assistant Mayor Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, and Ward 5 Director 

Barbara Miner. 

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager E. Jay Ellington, City Clerk Heather Soyars and Deputy City 

Clerk Jenny Narens. 

ABSENT: Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart and City Attorney George Matteson. 

Invocation given by Mayor Allen Brown. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Police Chief Kristi Bennett. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Director Harris said the White House had a program called Affordable Connectivity Program 

(ACP) to help low-income households receive discounts on internet service and laptops.  He also 

stated the Economic Development Administration (EDA) Build to Scale Program released $45 

million worth of grant funding.  The two funding streams were the “Venture Challenge” and the 

“Capital Challenge.”       

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Texarkana Arkansas Police Department 2022 Strategic Plan Presentation. (TAPD) Chief 

Kristi Bennett 

CONSENT 

Director Roberts made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Hollibush. The motion carried and the following items were approved: 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 4, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

3. Resolution No. 2022-29 authorized the City Manager to purchase a Control System from 

Montgomery Technology Inc., for the Bi-State Justice Building Jail. (Bi-State) Building 

Maintenance Manager Kristine Barron 



 

REGULAR 

4. Resolution No. 2022-30 accepted the 2021 audit engagement letter prepared by the accounting 

firm BKD, LLP. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director Brewer, and 

Director Miner.  

Voting Nay: Director Harris 

The motion carried 5-1 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

5. Resolution No. 2022-31 granted permission to the City Manager to submit the applications 

of four lots of land to the Commissioner of State Lands Urban Homestead Act 1009 of 1993. 

(Admin) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush.  

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 15-2022 authorized a Temporary Fuel Surcharge be added to the Texarkana 

Water Utilities bill for Waste Haulers. (PWD) 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated for made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner.  



 

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Miner, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

No one came forward. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington gave the following report: 

 He attended an ARDOT meeting today, and they discussed overlays being put on Highway 

71, Highway 237, Sugarhill Road and Highway 108. 

 The City had a great turnout for the REDI event with the governor. 

 He would be in Arkadelphia, Arkansas, Thursday, and Friday for the Arkansas City 

Manager meeting.   

 There would be an A&P meeting April 27, 2022, at 4:30 PM. 

 Food Truck Festival located at Bobby Ferguson Park would be held on April 30, 2022. 

 Twin City Black History Association Parade would be downtown on April 30, 2022. 

 Twin City Meat Up would be April 22, 2022. 

 Dance fitness would be every Tuesday night at the Rec Center. 

 He said the Comprehensive Plan meeting would be open to the public on April 28, 2022, 

from 6:00 PM – 8:00 PM located in the Rec Center. 

 Animal Care and Adoption Center (ACAC) had an advisory board made up of eight people.  

Mr. Ellington said they reduced the fees for rescue agents from $40.00 to $10.00 per 

animal. 

 The City received the ARDOT permit for the I-30 lights.   

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session at 6:53 PM. 



 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:02 PM and the following action was taken: 

7. Resolution No. 2022-32 made appointments to the Board of Adjustment and the Historic 

District Commission. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

 
Board/Commission: Appointee: Term: 
 

Board of Adjustment 

 

Ray Cox 

Reappointment 

 

2/17/2022---2025 

 

Board of Adjustment 

 

Ricky Pondexter 

Reappointment 

 

2/17/2022---2025 

 

Historic Dist. Commission 

 

David Ellison 

Appointment 

 

For the unexpired term of Doris Davis 

1/17/2020---2023 

 

Historic Dist. Commission 

 

Natasha Crabbe 

Reappointment 

 

1/17/2022---2025 

 

Historic Dist. Commission 

 

David Jones 

Reappointment 

 

1/17/2022---2025 

 

 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, May 2, 2022 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Roberts.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Miner.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:04 PM. 

APPROVED this the 2nd day of May 2022. 

 

______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $37,900 to the 

Texarkana Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) 

Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

AGENDA DATE: 05/02/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The American Rescue Act Fund was approved by the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Board of Directors on December 20, 2021 with resolution 

2021-65. This budget allocated $972,090 in 2021 and the remaining 

$656,637 in 2022. Of the total $1,628,727, nothing has been spent. The 

purpose of this agenda item is to approve the reimbursement of $37,900 

to the Texarkana Regional Airport for engineering services in 

connection with the Landside Development. As this would be considered 

a general governmental service, it is eligible for reimbursement under 

the revenue loss portion of the American Rescue Plan Act.     

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $37,900 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $37,900 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and budget 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, allocated American Rescue Act Funds remain available for use in 

accordance with applicable law and restriction; and 

WHEREAS, an eligible use of a portion of such funds is to reimburse the Airport 

Authority for $37,900.00 incurred in connection with landslide development; and the total 

$1,628,727.00 has not been spent; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the reimbursement described herein is approved and, further, 

all applicable City budgets are appropriately amended.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of May, 2022. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

_____________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 
 







Invoice
Date

4/8/2022

Invoice #

5

Bill To

City of Texarkana Arkansas

TXK Capital Improvement

201 Airport Drive
Texarkana, AR 71854

P.O. No. Terms Project

Total

DescriptionQuantity Rate Amount

Airport landside development that is not eligible for AIP grants or PFC funding. 37,900.00 37,900.00

$37,900.00



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

with Solid Waste Specialists, LLC, to prepare and procure documents 

required to solicit proposals for commercial and residential waste 

collection. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

AGENDA DATE: May 2, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: To hire a consultant for Waste Hauler contracts. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The current Waste Hauler contracts end on December 31, 2023.  The 

Request for Proposal for a Solid Waste Consultant encourages 

companies engaged in solid waste consulting to submit a proposal to 

develop a new residential and commercial solid waste collection 

contract. 

One proposal was submitted by Solid Waste Specialists, LLC (SWS), on 

Tuesday, April 26, 2022.  This proposal demonstrates the firm’s 

understanding of the City’s goal to secure the best value in services for 

the collection of commercial and residential waste. 

Develop RFP and Contract and Perform Procurement Process $44,965.  

SWS will invoice the City in 1/3rd increments at the following stages in 

the process: 

1. Completion of the RFP and Contract 

2. When proposals are submitted and scored 

3. When recommendation from SWS is submitted to Staff 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $44,965 

AMOUNT BUDGETED:  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval. 



EXHIBITS: Resolution, Request for Proposal, newspaper publication and Solid 

Waste Specialist, LLC proposal. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, the current Waste Hauler Contracts are set to expire on December 31, 

2023, and Administration proposes retention of a consultant to develop a request for 

proposals (RFP) and a new residential and commercial solid waste contract for further use 

in connection with any new contracts entered into after expiration of the expiring contracts 

and, further, to assist with selection of the new haulers;  

WHEREAS, upon advertisement, a bid was submitted by Solid Waste Specialists, 

LLC, in the amount of $44,965.00 to develop a RFP, develop a draft of a hauler contact, 

and to assist in the hauler procurement process;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to enter 

into a contract with Solid Waste Specialists, LLC, under the terms and for the purposes set 

forth above. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of May, 2022. 

 

  

_______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 ________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 ________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 



Request for Proposals– Solid Waste Consultant 

The City of Texarkana, Arkansas encourages companies engaged in solid waste consulting to submit a 

proposal.  This solicitation is to acquire a consultant to develop a new residential and commercial solid 

waste collection contract ready for bid by end of 2022.  Consultant will be required to incorporate: 

1. Current Industry best practices and trends 

2. Most efficient and user-friendly method(s) of collection 

3. Customer requirements 

4. Disposal 

5. Key issues important to the City 

6. Service Levels 

7. Polycart sizes and ownership 

8. Transition plan 

9. Annual Rate adjustments 

10. Franchise Fees 

11. Other topics as required by the City 

If interested, you are requested to submit statements of qualifications and performance data.  As a 

minimum this is to include: 

1. Qualifications of the firm 

2. Submit project schedule as well as proof of firms ability to complete past work in a 

timely manner; 

3. Comparable projects completed within the past five (5) years; 

4. Staff qualifications and experience; 

5. Organizational chart, and; 

6. References and previous clients. 

7. Cost Proposal in lump sum manner to create the contract, advertise for bid, receive and 

review bids, give recommendation on vendor. 

This information must be submitted to Tyler Richards, P.E., Director of Public Works, City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, 216 Walnut Street, Texarkana, Arkansas 71854 at a public bid opening at 10:00 a.m. on 

Tuesday, April 26, 2022 at City of Texarkana, Arkansas City Hall. 











































 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to purchase Comfort 

Isle Skid Restrooms from AMS Global, for the Festival Plaza Park area. 

(ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: May 2, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: To purchase restrooms for Festival Plaza. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YES 

SUMMARY: AMS Global is an Arkansas based company and is the sole source 

provider for Comfort Isle Skids, Slip & Slide Retractable and Hands-

Free Hand wash stations. Restrooms are needed in Festival Plaza Park 

area and will allow patrons to downtown activities access to clean public 

restrooms. These restrooms are private with toilets and sinks in each 

room. The request includes: 

4 units of Comfort Isle 12 ADA 3ST D 

 3 private rooms with toilets and sinks in each 

 One room ADA compliant 

 2-piece aluminum ADA ramp with handrails 

 Direct connect to sewer or septic 

 Stainless steel soap and tissue dispensers 

 .080 Poly Core Polar White exterior 

 1.5” steel tubing frame walls 

 Obscure skylights in radius doors 

 Vandal resistant pebble finished interior wall panels 

 Rubber coined industrial flooring 

 Commercial entry doors with recessed lighting 

 Commercial heavy duty door closers 

 Dusk to dawn LED porch lighting 

 Radiant Barrier Insulated Walls and ceilings 

 30 Amp power requirement 



 15,000 BTU AC unit with 5500 BTU heat strip 

2 units of Comfort Isle 12 4ST 

 4 private rooms with toilets and sinks in each 

 Direct connect to sewer or septic 

 Stainless steel soap and tissue dispensers 

 .080 Poly Core Polar White exterior 

 1.5” steel tubing frame walls 

 Obscure skylights in radius doors 

 Vandal resistant pebble finished interior wall panels 

 Rubber coined industrial flooring 

 Commercial entry doors with recessed lighting 

 Commercial heavy duty door closers 

 Dusk to dawn LED porch lighting 

 Radiant Barrier Insulated Walls and ceilings 

 30 Amp power requirement 

 15,000 BTU AC unit with 5500 BTU heat strip 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $219,130.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED:  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$219,130.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Quote and Specifications 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE 

ACQUISITION OF COMFORT ISLE SKID 

RESTROOMS; AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR 

THE SAME; WAIVING COMPETITIVE 

BIDDING; FOR DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 

WHEREAS, the continued development of City facilities, such as the downtown 

festival plaza, necessitates the acquisition of portable skid restrooms; and  

WHEREAS, products of the nature required vary by manufacturer and, do not 

readily lend themselves to competitive bidding; and 

WHEREAS, upon investigation, it has been determined that A.M.S. Global, Inc., 

of De Queen, Arkansas, manufactures and supplies such facilities of the nature and type 

determined to be required, namely, four units of Comfort Isle 12 ADA 3ST D and two units 

of Comfort Isle 12 4ST; and  

WHEREAS, A.M.S Global, Inc., represents, by written documentation filed with 

the clerk, that it is the sole service provider for Comfort Isle Skid, Slip & Slide Retractable 

and its Hands-Free Hand Wash Stations; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §14-47-138, the Board of Directors may 

waive the requirements of competitive bidding in exceptional situations where competitive 

bidding is not feasible; and 

WHEREAS, waiver of competitive bidding is also permitted by Section 2-72 of 

the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances for the reasons set out therein (one 

or more of which being applicable to the purchase contemplated hereby); and  

WHEREAS, it is specifically recognized and determined by the Board of 

Directors, and as evidenced by the supporting documentation provided by staff, that 

facilities at issue are unique and effectively offered by a single source fitting the City’s 

needs; and 



WHEREAS, the purchase price for the above described products is $219,130.00; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff request approval of the purchase, and 

waiver of any applicable competitive bidding practices, all as and for the reasons described 

above;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

Section 1: The purchase of specific products described above and for the 

amount so recited is approved and any competitive bidding practices that may be otherwise 

required by applicable law and ordinance are waived. 

Section 2:    The City Manager is authorized to enter into any agreement 

reasonably necessary to carry out the purchase contemplated hereby.      

Section 3: The FY 2021 Budget is hereby amended to appropriate the funds 

necessary for such purchase and to reflect the corresponding expenditure. 

Section 4: This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health, and safety (including, without limitation, benefit of promptly ordering and making 

the necessary facilities), and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this 

emergency clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be 

in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of May, 2022. 

 

 ______________________________ 

 Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 













 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located in the 6000-6100 

block of East Broad Street from R-1 Rural residential to C-3 Open-

display commercial. (Ward 6) (PWD) City Planner Mary Beck 

AGENDA DATE: 04/14/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to rezone a tract of land from R-1 Rural residential 

to C-3 Open-display commercial.        

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: A large rural tract of land consisting of nearly 24 acres has been 

purchased on East Broad Street for the purpose of developing 

commercial storage of boats and recreational vehicles.  If the zoning 

request is adopted, a conditional use permit will be required to be 

reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission before 

development can occur.   

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The Planning Commission recommends C-3 open-display commercial 

as an appropriate zone at this location.       

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, deed, location map. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 

NO. K-286, AS AMENDED; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the 

Planning Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting that the following land 

be rezoned from R-1 Rural residential to C-3 Open-display commercial: 

 

All that certain tract or parcel of land being a part of the SW 1/4 of the NW 

1/4 and the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of Section 2, T. 15 S., R. 28 W., Miller 

County, Arkansas and being more particularly described by metes and 

bounds as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a window weight found in place at the Southwest corner of 

the NW 1/4 of Section 2, T.15 S., R. 28 W., Miller County, Arkansas; a 10d 

nail in an 18" elm bears N. 85º 02' E., 5.7 ft. and a 10d nail in a 24" sweet 

gum bears S. 55 º 23' W., 39.6 ft.; 

 

THENCE N. 01º 17' 23" W., 1317.44 ft. with the West boundary line of the 

above-mentioned NW 1/4 of Section 2, T. 15 S., R. 23 W. to a 1/2" reinf. 

steel set for corner on the South right-of-way line of U. S. Highway Interstate 

30; 

 

THENCE N. 43º 42' 54" E., 5.61 ft. with said South right-of-way line of U.S. 

Highway Interstate 30 to a 1/2" reinf. steel set for corner; 

 

THENCE N. 89º 32' 42" E., 744.74 ft. with the North boundary line of the 

above-mentioned SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 to a 1/2" reinf. steel set for corner; 

 

THENCE S. 01º 17' 23" E., 1321.26 feet to a 1/2" reinf. steel set for corner 

on the North right-of-way line of Relocated U.S. Highway No. 67; same 

being a curve to the left having a radius of 5797.58 ft; the radius point bears 

S. 43º 20' 59" E.; 

 



 

THENCE Southwesterly with said North right-of-way line of Relocated U.S. 

Highway No. 67 and curve, a distance of 351.52 ft. through a central angle 

of 03º 28' 26" to a 1/2" reinf. steel found in place; 

 

THENCE N. 01º 17' 23" W., 246.88 ft. to a 1/2" reinf. steel set for corner on 

the South boundary line of the above-mentioned NW 1/4 of Section 2, T. 15 

S., R. 23 W.; 

 

THENCE S. 89º 31' 47" W., 495.00 ft. with the above-mentioned South 

Boundary line of the NW 1/4 to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 

0.705 acres in the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4 and 22.709 acres in the SW 1/4 of 

the NW 1/4 for a total of 23.414 acres of land, more or less. 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, approved said 

application and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, adopt the ordinance affecting said rezoning request; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas:  Ordinance No. K-286, as amended, is hereby amended to rezone 

the above-described property in the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, from R-1 Rural residential 

to C-3 Open-display commercial.  This is solely a rezoning and no other action, conveyance 

or release of interest. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of May, 2022. 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

 Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
cityoftexarkanaar.com  

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 

F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 

D A T E :  April 14, 2022 

S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for May 2, 2022 – Rezoning recommendation 

– Request by Ward & Casteel Properties, LLC, 4892 Calhoon Trail, 
Texarkana, AR 71854-8796 to rezone a tract of land from R-1 Rural 
residential to C-3 Open display commercial.   
  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       
 

The property is located in the 6000-6100 block of E. Broad Street and is legally described as 
PT SW ¼ NW ¼ & NW ¼ SW ¼ Section 2, T.15S, R.28W., Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas 
and contains 23.414 acres more or less.     
 

REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 
To develop mini-storage and/or boat and RV commercial storage.   
 
EXISTING LAND USES:      
 

Site:    Vacant 
North:  Vacant – rural adjacent to Interstate 30  
East:    Single family rural 
South:  Hwy 67, Mandeville area 
West:   Vacant - undeveloped 

 

EXISTING ZONING:  
 

Site:     R-1 Rural residential   
North:  R-1 Rural residential      
South:  R-1 Rural residential 
East:    R-1 Rural residential       
West:   C-3 Open display commercial  

  

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 
 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
cityoftexarkanaar.com  

 

The long-term comprehensive plan of 1988 does not include this area.  However, industrial 
usage is probably best use due to the access to rail, proximity to the airport and access to U. 
S. Hwy 67 in a mostly undeveloped part of town.  City water is available but city sewer has 
not been developed near this property and would require a septic system to service the 
required commercial building for any retail activity that could be conducted in a C-3 Open-
display commercial zone.   

Plans for storage of RV and boats and mini storage buildings are not incompatible with 
current land usage or with industrial development at this location or other open display land 
uses should the plans of the owners change.   

 

  

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 

Local :             None 
                 
Collector:         None 
 
Arterial:            East Broad Street (U. S. Hwy 67) 
 
Water:              4” located in adjacent right of way 
                        10” in adjacent right of way   
 
Sewer:              Would require septic system approved by Miller County Health   
                        Department. 
 
Fire hydrant:     Located on or adjacent to the property on Broad Street. 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – “All plans, 
recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through the following procedure 
for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, ordinances, and 
regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, 
at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and proposed ordinance and 
regulations may be recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority vote of the 
entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and regulations, the 
commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and regulations to the 
legislative body of the city for its adoption. 
 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
cityoftexarkanaar.com  

(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended ordinances and 
regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire 
membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances 
or regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote of 
a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted        plans, ordinances, and 
regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the county 
recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, 
ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, March 27, 2022 edition of the Texarkana 
Gazette.  Letters were mailed to thirteen (13) adjacent property owners within 300’ as required.  
 

OPPOSITION:  
 

 

None to date. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 

The Planning Commission met on April 12, 2022 and on a motion by Dr. Randall Hickerson, 
seconded by Ms. Bertha Dunn, a roll call vote carried the motion for approval of the zoning 
recommendation 5-0 with no opposition and two absent:  
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Yes 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Absent 
Randall Hickerson Yes 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas 
Mike Jones                          

Yes 
Absent 

  
 

  
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  
To adopt an ordinance to change zoning from R-1 Rural residential to C-3 Open-display 
residential. 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three times before 
adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the second and third 
subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 

 

 
 

 

Planning Commission review 
Prepared by: 

Planning Division - Public Works Department 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 








	Top
	1.	Economic Development Week Proclamation
	2.	Employee Service Awards
	item_2_05022022_ccd_employee service awards

	3.	Minutes
	item_05022022_ccd_minutes
	item_3_04182022_minutes

	4.	Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds
	item_05022022_fin_airport_ARPA reimbursement
	item_4_05022022_Resolution_Airport
	item_05022022_fin_airport_ARPA backup
	item_05022022_fin_airport_ARPA_inv

	5.	Waste Hauler Contract consultant
	item_5_05022022_admin_waste hauler consult item
	item_5_05022022_Resolution_Solid Waste
	item_05022022_admin_rfp_waste hauler consultant
	item_05022022_admin_rfp_solid waste specialists
	item_5_05022022

	6.	Skid Restrooms
	item_6_05022022_admin_skid restrooms
	item_6_05022022_Ordinance_skid restrooms
	item_05022022_admin_Skid restrooms_festival plaza

	7.	05022002_pw_pl_rezone_east_broad_street
	item_7_05022022_pwdpl_casteel rezoning
	item_7_05022022_Ordinance_Rezone_casteel
	item_05022022_pwdpl_casteel memo
	item_05022022_pwdpl_casteel map
	item_05022022_pwdpl_casteel deed

	Bottom

